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ISLANDS IN THE MISSISSIFPI.

By: L.S.Staples.

PRAIRIE ISLAND

On the west side of the main channel of the Mississippi
river, about nine miles down the river from Hastings and now form=—

ing the northern parts of Burnside and Welch townships of Goodhue

County,Minnesota, is the largest island in the Mississippi between
Minneapolis and the Minnesota~Iowa boundary line and is known as
Prairie Island.
As far as can be tracded Prairie Island derived its name
' -
from an 0ld French name, Isle Pelee, or Bald Island, so name bhecause,

at the time of its discovery, it did not contain a single tree, but

was a beautiful prairie.

Controversially classified by two opposed schools of Minn-

esota historians as being or not being the first locality in Minnesota
inhebited by white men, Prairie Esland has become the subject of con-
giderable archeological disputes. Over one hundred books have been
written on the subject of whether Sieur des Groseilliers and Pierre
Esprit Redisson, two young, intrepid Frenchmen, did or did not visit

Prairie Island in 1655, spending there the winter of 1855-56.

FICTION OR FACT Contained within the contents of Redisson's book entitled
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"The Auxoticiat Voyage into the Great and filthy Leke of the Hurrons,

Upper Sea of the Bast, and Bay of the Nortq, published by ;he Prince

v {

-1 (25 ¥W'E

Society of Boston in 1885, is the fact or ;1ct‘1nﬂfhat quiqson; in

company with his brother-in-law, Groseilliers, and a small company of
I\

v ' I
Huron and Ottowa Indians, visited Minnesota on their first voyage.

In reading Redisson's story, his claims, if taken seriously,
would lead the student of history to believe Radisson had visited almost
ery part of Americe. Admitting that there are parts of Radisson's narr=

-

ative which are mostly fictitious Warren Upham, recognized authority on
Minnesota's eerly histofy, picked out that part of Radisson's story of
the first voyage, which Ughamrisimed referred to Groseilliers? and Rad-
sson!s occupation of a spot known es'the first lending isle," and ident-

ified it as Prairie Island

Continuing further in his analysis of Radisson's narrative
Upham believed, from Radisson's description of places, that, after ob-
taining the escort of the Hurons and Ottowas, Groseilliers and Radisson
left Quebec, ascended the Ottowa river by way of Nipissing(name correct)
to a place now recognized as Georgian Bay, 'stopped at all trading posts,
and passed a winter in the immeadiate vicinity of the Strait of Mackinac.
Not stating the exact date they set out on their journey Upham believed
that this voyage of profit rather than fame took place in the fall of
1654,basing this date on the fact that Radisson had returned to Quebec
from France in the spring of that year.

From the description furnished by Radisson Upham states that
early the next year, in the spring of 1655, Groseilliers and Radisson

’

L O o Y c‘\- Y r “ AAN L9
went to the southern end of Green Bay. Heré they ascerded the Fox pives

through Leke Winnebago, pushed across the state of Wisconsin, entering
the Mississippi through Leke Pepin, ascended that river to "the first

landing Isle," which Upham studiously analized as being Prairie Island.
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Uphem believed their stay a2t this spot lasted through the month of April
or May, 1655, to June, 1656, & period of about fourteen months, when,
after considerable persuasive arguments on the part of Redisson, the
Hurons and Ottowas agreed to accompany the two voyageurs back to Canada
with a rich carge of "castors#furs(beaver furs).
Julius Chambers, in his book "Source of the Mississip

its Wonderful Valley,'"(G.P.Putnam's Sons, The Knickerbocker Press,New
York and London,1910) accepte Upham's version of Groseilliers'and Rad-

oyage as being factual. Impressed by Raddison's description of
the great council held on Prairie Island just previous to their depart-
ure for Quebec, Chambers states OQuotes)“It bears so many earmarks of
veritability that Redisson must be acquitted of exaggeration in this in-
stance, if not in some others. Probably five hundred Indians of various

tribes had assembled, to accompany the two Frenchmen to Lower Canada. The

Hurons, who had accompanied the traders the previous vear, were afraid
? ¢/ »

of their enemies(Iroquois), then upon the war path along the route. The

dangers of the return journey took away the courage of the Indians and
they began talking about waiting until another year. But Radisson, as
soon as the "Council of Braves" was assembled, harsngued it."(end of

quotes)

Reading Warren Upham's vivid description of the foregoing

event an artist would be inspired to depict this dramatic happening in
glowing colors. Enthusiastically drawing his word-picture Upham states:
(quotes) "What a scene for a vpainter to depict Groseilliers and Radisson

pleading before eight hundred Indians! On each side, two miles away,

rise the wooded bluffs that inclose this valley a s igsland. In &

beuatiful prairie area, the motely crowd .of savasz: are setting or lying
upon the ground. At the center of the assemblage, these two courageous

™

Frenchmen are striving to persuade their dusky auditors to set out on the
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first commercial venture connecting this region with civilization."{end
of guotes
CONTRARY OPINIONS Franklyn Curtiﬁlﬁédﬁe, Minnesota historian, in his "History
6F HISTORIANS.
of Dekota end Goodhue Counties(H.C.Cooper,Jr. & Co-,Chicago,1910), disputes
Werren Uoham's version of Groseilliers! and Radisson's "first voyage,!
guestion as to the first white man who ever set
this county(Goodhue)is no less a matter of conject=-
or soldiers of fortune may have wandered to this locality,
white men of whom we have any reliable record as to his pres=
here is F=ther Louis Hennenin, an explorer and Franciscan Monk, in
1680, This statement is made with full knowledge of the sllegations adw
vanced by Warren Upham, of the State Historical Society, that Radisson
and Groselliers wintered on Prairie Island in 1655-56 and were consequantly
the first white men in Minneso ta. In this contention, Mr.Upham is un-
supported by any reliable historian, and his own earlier writings success-
fully refute his present arguments." (end of quotes)

Supporting his argument Curtis-Wedge refers to William Kings=
ford's book "The History of Cenada(Torontp 1887-98, ten volumes),! wherein
Kingsford yefers to the relation of Groselliers and Radisson to the start
of English Commerce in the region of Hudson Bay. Ignoring the four lend
expeditions described by Radisson in his book published by the Prince
Society Kingsford declared that part to be "without value! and assumed

to be the work of a writer of fiction.

Other historians such as Henry E.Legler in "Leading Events of

Wisconsin History, "(Milwaukee, 1898, pages 322 tes that "evidence is

lacking to prove the surmise" concerning Grosellierd and Radis 's supposed
Jjourney to the Mississippi. Hon.Robert Laird Mc Cormick states:(@uotes)”%ist-
orical students would welcome further information regerding the travels of

these two explorers who doubtless saw the Upper Mississippi jears before
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ISTANDS—IN -THE MISSISSTIPPI-RIVER

By Le.S .S‘b&ples-

GREY CLOUD ISLAND On the right side of the main channel of the Miss=-
issippi river, coming up-river from Hastings and a short dise
tance above that city, is Grey Cloud Island., Bounded on the
west end and south side by the river and on the north side and

east end by Grey Cloud Slough, these waters form one of the most

picturesque islands in the Mississippi river below St.Paul and

the Iowa line,

Grey Cloud Island received its name from Mahkepi-
&=hoto=win or Mar=pi=ya~noeto=-win, described as "a noted Sioux
woman who lived on the i1sland." Historians state that the name
which in both forms means Grey Cloud was in fact applied by the
Sioux to not only one woman but two, the wife and daughter of
James Aird, an early fur trader and first cousin of the Scotch

poet, Robert Burns.

An interesting story is contained in the history of the
Aird femily, James Aird, trader and close relative of the Scottish
bard, wes born in Ayrshire, Scotland, Spending his early youth
there, Aird came to Americe in 1793, landing at Quebec. Soon after

his arrival the Hudson's Bay Compeny employed him as e fur trader and,

for a period of years, represented them &b various post,
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During the period of his employment with the Hud=
son's Bay Company, Jemes Aird married an attractive Sioux
maiden who bore him a daughter, Margaret Aird. In 1805 Mar-
garet, then a young lady, married Ceptain Thomas Anderson of
the Bitish Army. From this latter unign was born Mary, Ang=
us M. and Jene Anderson, Seperating from Capt.Anderson after eight
years of marriage, Margaret Aird later married Hazen Mooers and,
in company with him, went to Lake Traverse where Mooers wes em-
ployed as fur trader for the American Fur Company.

It was at Lake Traverse tﬁat Andrew Roberstson, an
early trader and friend of Hazen Mooers, married Jane Anderson
Mooers, daughter of Margaret Aird by her former marriage., Shortly
after the nuptials Robertson, in company with his young bride,
Hazen Mooers and wife and Mrs.James Aird, also Joseph Renshaw
Brown, removed to Grey Cloud Island, This was during the year
of 1838,and it was at this time that Roberkson, seeking for a
name for the island, mamed it Grey Cloud, after the Sioux name
of both Mrs.Jemes Aird and her daughter, Margaret Aird Moocers.

EVIDENCES OF EARLY . While the construction of the modern dem across the

OCCUPATION,
Mississippi river at Hastings has changed the former physical

shape of Grey Cloud through water back'up over it, there still

remains evidence that an early tribe of "mound builders" inhabe
ited this island long before white men set foot upon the land,
During an archeological survey conducted by the Minnesota Hist=
orical Bociety ,in 1887, J,V.Brower, Minnesota archeologist, ex~
amined one hundred and five (105) mounds of the aborigines lo=
cated on Grey Cloud Islend proper. Curry Mounds, situated eighty
feet above the Mississippi river on é high bluff and within the
immeadiate vieinity of Grey Cloud, contaimed twenty=four of the

tumulus. Some were all circular, averaging from thirty to eighty
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feet in diemeter, and were from one foot to five feet in height.
Others were elongated, the largest of which was thirty feet long by
eighteen feet wide, with an average height of one and a half feet,
Without doubt scme of these mounds, or tumuli, were the burial place
of a race existing in very ancient times, while others are ordinary
earthworks, or hillocks, placed there by & pre=historic: people for

some unknown reason.

EARLY HISTORY OF Many nomadic tribes of Indians, wandering about the wild-

THE ISLAND,

erness in search of game and fish, occupied Grey Cloud Island‘and had
temporary villages_there about the time of the early explorations of
the Upper Miésissippi river by the white men, As Radisson states,
if we.are to accept his word in his narrative relating his and Gros=
elliers! trip to Prairie Island in 1655, Hurons and Ottowas occupied
that latter islands upon their arrival there. Grey Cloud, being but
a short distance from Prairie Island, might have had temporary will=
ages of the Hurons and Ottowas as well,

For many years wandering tribes of Sioux occupied Grey
Cloud Island. Few historical references are available to tell who
led these early Sioux. In 1849, however,when the territory of Minne
eosta was egtablished and the first territorial legislature defined
the counties that were included in that wide space of land west of
the Mississippi river, mention was made that Wabesha, a prominent
Sioux chief, ruled over all that part of territory lying between
the Mississippi and & line drawn south of Pine Bend or "Medicine
Bottle's village," a few miles above the present site of Hastings.

Previous to this Medicine Bottle, one of the lesser Sioux
chiefs, had a village on Grey Cloud Island, Recent writings k;;c
shown that he was a worthy leader. Shortly before the Indian treaty

of the year of 1837, this counselor and medicine man rose to modest
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through a division of the Sioux under the leadership of a chief named
Medicine Doge

When troops moved into Fort St.Anthony(later Fort Snelling),
uneasiness began to be felt among & number of bands of Sioux who resented
the soldiers! occupation of the military reservation. Admittedly, the
chiefs had sold the land to the United States government, but not all
the Sioux people agreed that their relations with the newcomers would be
to their sdventege. Teking place in 1819,the American soldiers! coming
may have had some influence on the split up of the band of Big Thunder
and Little Crow, the Elder. It was at about this time that Big Thunder
left Little Crow's band and sought other hunting grounds. At the same
time,a few of the Sioux of Little Crow's village followed a chiefl by the
neme of Medicine Dog to a few miles below St.Paul and,on the east
of the river, esteblished a village of their own. It was at this
plece that mention was first made of the chief, Medicine Bottle.

Living but a short while under the leadesship of Medicine
Dog more dissetisfaction arose emong this partichlar bend of Siouxe. An=
other split up occurred and,this time, a small groupof Sioux selected
Weukan-ojan-jen(name corredt),meaning Spirit Light or Holy Light, as
their chief. Under his leadership they went down the river for a distance
of about eight miles to Grey Cloud island andtherér built some large willow
and bark lodges on the northwest part of this spot. Perhaps, it was at this
time that traders, translating the chief's name, Wauken-ojan-jan, to English,
decided to call him Medicine Bottle. No record remeins as to why he was
called that name,but it is kmown that this tribe remained on Grey Cloud
until the autum of 1837. It was then, through agreements reached in the
Indian treaty of 1 Medicine Bottle removed his people to a point on
the west side of the Mississippi, a short distence south of a place called
Pin de Tour by the French, but now known as Pine Bend.

During the fifteen years stay at Pine Bend MNedicine Bottle end
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his people hunted and fished within the immeadiete vicinity of

Hastings, Spring lake, and Belanger island. ,In 1852, he and his

band removed to the new Sioux Reservation on the Upper Minnesota
iver. Here, with his wife and femily, he began his conversion to

the ways of the white man, plowing the earth, planting the crops,

reaping the harvest and raising domesticated animals,

Previously, Medicine Bottle had been an ardent sudent
of the art of conhuration, but now he gave it up, reteining only
his consi able knowledge on cupping, bleeding, hot steam baths
and the use of medicinal barks, herbs and roots, which he liberally
administered to the sick of his own tribe and the white settlers.,
But, in trying to learn the ways of the white man, Medicine Bottle
erected a white man's scaffold for drying corn which, ironically,
cost him his life.

During e bountiful season of hunting, long before the
Sioux outbreak of 1862, Médicine Bottle had bagped & number of wild
ducks. Bringing them home,his wife and daughter, selecting a spot
elose to the corn scaffold, proceded to pluck and clean the birds,.
A chicken stood watching the process. Suddenly, it grabbed a piece
of dressed duck and attempted to make off with it. Medicine Bottle
pursued it. In his haste, he failed to notice the long steel hook
which was clasped to a chain hanging from the rafters of the scaff=-
olds Stumbling into it, the hook entered his mogth, penetrating to
his brain and causing almost instant death.

It is interesting to kmow this former resident of Grey
Cloud Island was an Indian of much ability. He gained a reputation
as e wise leader, always giving freely of his lmowledge of Nature's
medicined,. setting a good example for his tribe to follow and earn=

ing the friendship of the whites by his honestye.

No mentiog is made by Forsythe of Medicine Bottle during
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his stop on Grey Cloud Island on August 20,1819. This over-
night visit occurred while Forsythe and Colonel Leavanworth
were on their way to Mendota to establish an outpost at Fort
Snellinge. Forsythe does state, however, that they landed with
the troops at a place called "Medicine Wood," Btating further

that the place received its name "from a large Beech tree, which

kind of wood the Sioux are not acqguainted with, and supposing the

great spirit had placed it there as a good genius to protect or
punish them according to their merits or demerits."” This state-
ment of Forsythet!s leads to the conclusion that Medicine Bottle
might have named that tree and knew its bark had curative qual-
ities.

In his "History of Washington County," Edward D,Neill
states that as early as 1819 Joseph Bouchea, an early French trader,
we. s sent to Grey Cloud islend to buy corn and potatoes for his em=—
ployers. At that time, Bouchea states.that there were about a hundred
lodges of Indians occupying a spot on the island. No mention was
made that it was the band of Sioux led by Medicine Bottle. No doubt
it was, however, for, in 1838, when the Mooers, Robertsons and Joseph
Renshaw Brown came to Grey Cloud, the Mooers and Robertscns took posse
ession of theee large bark lodges, located on the west end of the is=
land, that Medicine Bottle's band had vacated in the fall of 1837,

Bouchea did not stay at Grey Cloud, but Mooers, Robert-
son and Brown did, the families of the Mooers and Robertsons occu=
pying two large Indian lodges during the winter and Brown staying
with them. In May,1839, Mooers and Robertson erected two log houses
near the river. Soon afterward Joseph Renshaw Brown built a large
trading post toward the east end of the islande. As Medicine Bottle's

band had cultivated gardens the year previous, Mooers and Robertson

re-newed them, raising corn, potatoes and garden truck, the surplus
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of which they disposed of at Fort Snellinge. Brown continued his
occupation of tradinge.

The next year, or the year of 1840, Mooers and Robert=
son reised grain which they sold to the commissary at the forte
Through their act theyentered the much disputed historical list
of settlers who were accredited with raising the first cereal
grain in Minnesota., It cammot be clai
small acreage could be classed as a farm. Mooers end Robertson
were garden truckers rether than farmers.

Joseph Renshaw Brown, who had built a trading post a
short distance east of Mooers! snd Robertson's homes, was destined
to become one-of the most remarkable men in Minnesota's early hist=-
orye Shortly after arriving at Grey Cloud he married a half=breed
women, becoming allied through this marriage to the powerful Sioux
nation, over whom he acquired comsiderable influences In 1838, Gov.
Dodge, of Wisconsin Territory, appointed him Justice of the Peace of
the newly created county of St. Croix, which Grey Cloud Island was
jncluded in. It was while acting in the capacity of a justice at
Grey Cloud that Brown had to use almost Solomon-like wisdom in
settling a dispute over the ownership of a claim which arocse be=
tween a Frenchmen by the name of Lg Claire and Pig's Eye Parrant,
the first settler at the city of St.Paul.

During the year of 1839 a number of French-Canadians
settled at Pig's Ey, the called Grend Mareis, & point on the east
side of the Mississippi river, half a mile below Carver'!s Cave and
now called Pig's Ey Island. Among these Frenchmen was one Le Claire

who took up a claim which Pig's Eye Parrant claimed as his. A dis=

pute followed, snding in the decision on the part of both disputants

to let the law settle it; the "law" meaning Joseph Renshaw Brown,

Justice of the Peace of St.Croix County, Wisconsin Territory, with
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the office of that dignitary loceated at Grey Cloud Island.

Afteér hearing Le Claire's and Parrant's arguments
Brown, not being sure who was right, nor being aware of the law'g
course: in such a case, resorted to strategy. Instructing the men
that the only way to settle their dispute was to race to the dise
puted claim, the man arriving there first woukil become the owmér.

Parreant and Le Claire raced madly off. Arriving at

Grey Cloud Slough they plunged into the water and swam to the

mainlend. Le Claire, being the younger, managed to get in the

leads Parrant followed, puffing and cursing, being greatly out-
distanced by his young rivale Le Claire arrived at the claim

long before Parrent, gaining possession of it in the menner agreed
to. Soon following this memorable race,Parrant, disgusted and dis-

courag

=

ed, disappeared from Pig's Eye Island, never to be heard from
again.tSome say thet he returned to Canada, but the Sioux Indians
claimed he was:murdered by other Indians who were on the warpath.

Occupying the memories of the early voyageurs as their
plece of rendezvous it was natural that many French Canadians
would returm to Grey Cloud when the fur trading business declined.
Joseph Bouchea is one of the first mentioned by historians as having
visited the islands in 1819, In the fall of 1838, or the same year
Mooers, Robertson and Joseph Renshaw Brown ceme there, two French-
Canadian voyageurs, Joseph Bourcier(no Bouchea) and Pierre Felix,
came to Grey Cloud and built their cabins near Brown'se. Later,
Bourcier was employed by Brown &s his chief boatman or helmsman,
while Pierre Felix tilled the soil and operated a small farm.

It was &bout this same time that the interesting courier
du bois and voyageur, Maxcell Verville de Courturier(name correct),
came to Grey Cloud Island, locating in the fast-growing French-Can=-

adian community. Here he was to remain over a long period of years




GREY CLOUD ISLAND. Page 9.
as the last survivor of that brave, hardy and adventurous class
of men known as "yoyageurs."

Courturier was born at St.Francois, near Sorel,Can-
ada, in the year of 1816. When sixteen years of age he was em-
ployed by Gabriele Frenchere(name correct), the agent of the Amer-
jcan Fur Company, to act as a voyageur for a period of three years.
In the spring of 1832, Franchere and Courturier went to Mackinew.
Here Courturier was ordered to join a party of "engagees," under
the direction of Henri Auge, proceeding with them to points on the
upper Missouri, in what is now Montana, where the American Fur Comp=
any had e series of posts. Setting out on their journey by foot, the
party crossed the states of Wisconsin and Minnesota. Arriving a short
distence west of Lac qui Parle,"somewhere on the breeless prairie,”
the boy, Maxcell, took seriously ill. His comrades were not able.to
carry him, so they left the fever-smitten youth lying alecne to get
well as best as he could.

How long he remained lying on the prairie, pain racked
and half delirious, Courturier never lkmew., Al)l that he remembered

was thet the time of year was "at=the-time-of=-haying" and that the

hot sun was merciless. Finally, a wendering band of Sioux came upon

him and, moved to sympathy by his helpless condition, carried him to
their village where they nuréed him until the fever was broken and he
was able to stand on his feet alones When he was well enough to take
the trail the Indiens tool him to the tra@inf post of old Joseph Ren-
ville at Lac gui Parle. Upon seeing the emaciated and weaken lad the
0ld trader, knowing thet cholera had been raging at Prairie du Chien,
rushed into his cabin and barred the door, shouting: "He has the chol-
erg=====the choleral He shall not come ini" Later, however, Joseph
Renville's son convinced.his father that Courturier had no infectious

disease and, being re-assured, the old trader allowed the boy to came
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in, where he remained to recover his lealth and strength again.

After he recovered from his illness Courturiser en=

tered the employ of Joseph Renville, working for him for almost

‘two yéars. Later he worked for Louis Provencalle at Traverse de
Sioux as well as other famous traders such as John Babtiste Fari=
bault and old Joe Rollette, Wandering about for a period of years
he finally came to Grey Cloud, in 1838, end joined the voyageurs

of Joseph Remshaw Browm's at that point, Here he met Brown's half=
breed deughter, Mary Brown, whom he later married, the ceremoney
taking place in the little log chap which ultimately gave St.Paul
its name,and the nuptials being performed by Rev.Father A.Ravoux.

Shortly before Minmesota became a territory, or in the
year of 1848, Courturier, deciding to becoﬁe a farmer, went dowmn the
river to a point on the west bank of the stream, sixteen miles be-
low St.Paul, and selected a claim, Later, he sold this property to
the Oliver 'bro'bhers. Changing ownerships again it was obtained by
Irvine & Skone who platted a towm that was never built.

During the Civil War Courturier lived at Red Rock, a
short distance above Grey Cloud, where he engaged in hunting and
trapping., By 1865, he grew anxious to be on the trail again and
entered the employment of Dr.Ray, the explorer, to guide the latter
on his trip from St.Paul to Winnepege Returning from this trip
Courturier finally settled at Grey Cloud where he was to remain
util his death,

It was through Courturier's reminiscences that a spec=
ial correspondent of the St,Paul Pioneer Press learnmed of an Indian
romance, which took place on Grey Ckoud Island, that had all all of
the aspects of Shakespeare!s immortal play, "Romeo and Juliet," with
its "Montagues" and "Capulets;" During an interview with Courturier,

in May,1894, the correspondent listened to the 78w-year-old voyageur's
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narrative.

According to Courturier, inceddition to the band of
Medicine Bottlo's that resided at Grey Cloud Island, a band of
Sioux under the leadership of a brother=-inelaw of the noted Little
Crow known as Mah-ko-no-ho~te=mannee(The Earth Sounds as he Walks)
(name correct), also occupied the island for a short while, It was
not a large band, being composed only of the family of Mahkonohotes=
menmee and the families of five or six other braves. One of the
1atter families had been the sworn enemies of the family of Mahko=
nohotemannee for as long as the oldest member of the tribe could
recalls The paternal head of this family had a son who, through his
prowess on the hunt end in battle, had gained the devoted admiration

of his father and the respect of his bands His father had determined

thet, when the young brave married, he would never marry & maiden of

Mahtonohotemammee?!s.

Regardless of family interference the young brave had
fgllen in love with a grandaughter of Mahkonohotemannee. Secretely,
they had married and, when the two heads of the seperate families
found out sbout it the old fued, which had been merely smouldering,
began to blaze. They tried to seperate the happy pair. Dissension
arose, Strife and bitterness provoked the other members of the band
to seperate into oﬁposed groups. VWhen the situation became dangerous
and blood was about to flow, an agroement was reached whereby the
two groups would go their seperate ways, choosing villages far reo=
moved from one another, Packing their packs they left the island.
Where they went is not lmowm. When the Sioux treaty removed the
Tndians to the reservations, however, these two groups of Indians,
4necluding the happily married couple, were located at the Redwood
Indian Agency, complying with the treaty requiremsntse

Maxcell Courturier also related the story of Unk-to-mes
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sha("The White Spider")(name correct), another brother=in-law
of Little Crow, who lived on Grey Cloud Island a year or so, at
one time, This Indian, Unkbomasha, was a skillful hunter; well-
informed and shrewd, Courturier related that he was living near
Grey Cloud at the time of the Sioux uprising, in 1862, and had
prophesied that catastrophe by saying‘that "blood would rm" at
the Redwood Agency when the treaty paymenf took place.

Long after the outbreak was over, however, Unktomasha,
when asked by e citizen to explain the prophecy, that diplomatic
Indian stated that he had never made such a statement or, if he had,
it did not live in his memory,.

As late as 1894, more than a half a dozen families of
half=breeds lived on Grey Cloud Island, Streaming in their veins
was the blood of the Saxon and the Redman, They owned and cultivated
small farms, hunting and fishing whenever the opportunity presented
itself, Their homes were simple, practicable for their environment,
and comfortable, Most of the men had been adventurous spirits who
kmew the wilderness like a book, had blaged trails through the thick
forests, had known the way across trackless prairies and had cruised
up and down the streams of the country for more than helf a century,
When the industry they kmew so well became a thing of the past they
settled at Grey Cloud, Here they took up the life of small farmers
in a moderate way, but their memories remained rich with the scenes
and happenings of frontier life,

Grey Cloud Island was the setting for one of the seldom
heard stories and amusing tales of Franklin Steele, prominent in
the early history of the state, It was while he was at Fort Snelling
that Steele conceived a novel idea which would utilize the rich grazing
surface of the island,.

At Fort Snelling large herds of cattle and hogs were kept
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to provide fresh meat for the garrison, One season the prairie

in the immeadiate viecinity of the fort became poor pasturage for
the cows as well as the pigs, Knowing that it would not be safe
to allow the cows and pigs roam wnwatched through the woods, Steele
began looking around for a safe spot to keep them where no fence
would be necessary, Only en island would serve his purpose, as the
water surrounding it would keep the livestock on its surface, pro-
vidiing a natural fence,

Steele surveyed the surface of Pike's island, which
is in the river just e little way below the fort. It was too
small and had very little forages Proceeding down the river he
finally came to Grey Cloud, Spending some time on its surface and
appreciat; the rich and abundant grass the island had, he returned
to the Fort and issued‘orderS‘to take the cows and pigs to Grey Cloud,
Obeying his orders the soldiers removed the cattle and pigs to the is-
land and left them there,

Time passed, The fall season of the year drew close and
time had arrived to have more fresh meet, As the supply had been
pasturage out &t Grey Cloud the soldiers took boats and made their
way down the river to get the cows and pigs. When they arrived they
discovered that the cows had grown fat on their rich feed, bub the
pigs were no where in sight, Becoming anxious lest the pigs had es=-

caped they began to search for them. After a long trek through the

bushes they came upon them on the east end of the island., Sométhing

had happened to them, however, for, as the soldiers btiried to approach
them,a number of big, ferocius, razorback boars charged theme After
%ﬁhpering away to safety a number of times thé truth finally dawned

on the troopers that the hogs had reverted to their primeval instincts,
and had become so wild and vieious that they would have to be shot and

dressed on the islande. The slaughter begen and, when the pigs were
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disposed of, the soldiers loaded them into their boats, making the
cows swim the river and driving the critters to the fort up the old
government road,

Another tale that has its amusing engles is the story
of Joseph Renshaw Brown's herd of cows which he kept at his farm
on Groy Cloude

In 1841, being occupied with other interests, Brown
hired David Home, who later becems prominent in Washingbon county's

history, to care for his place, raising the crops and caring for the

cattle, Previously, Brown had never cut any hay during the haying

season to feed the stock in the winter,preferring to allow the cows
to forage on wild hay and swamp reeds which grew in abundance on
Grey Cloud

Early in the fall of 1841 the snow began to fall long
before it was expected, As time passed more and more snow covered
the ground, blanketing the wild hay and making it impossible for
the cows to even get at the reeds, Fearing the cows would die of
sbarvation Hone cut down tfees, feeding the herd on dried leaves
end bark, Somehow, the cows §urvied until the snow thawed in the
spring up the leaves and bark fodder that hone provided.

MODERN GREY CLOUD ISLAND, Enriched by a romantic background of history the island
of Grey Cloud still attracts lovers of the great outdoos to its wooded
and picturesque surface, Being oftly fifteen miles from St,Paul it is
within easy driving distance of the Twin Cities, During the sumer as
well as the winter months visitors are attracted to the island for
outings and to take advantage of the recreational faecilities offered
by a "dude's ranch," located there, In the old days, when boats
were taking great loads of excursionist down the river to Grey
Cloud, general picniecs took place upon the island. Today, while

boats of only private ownership land there, ome can transfer from
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behind the wheel of an automobile to horseback within twenbty
minutes after leaving the loop district of St,Paul,

The owner of the "dude ranch" has ereated a six and
one half mile bridle trail that wenders over the island, Starting
from the stables a winding ride through thieck woods is offered.

Here and there small brooks are crossed, some having rustic brildges,
others to be crossed in the rough, During the spring,summer, and
fa11 months, horseback riding is available. Then the snow falls and
winter sets in, the owmer of the "dude ranch" rents bob-sleighs large
enough to accomodate parties of twenby-five or more. Returning from
these rides luncheon privileges are furnished at the home of the
fanch ownér,

Serving as the original home of some of Minnesota's
aborigined then becoming the place of rendevouz for the Frenche
Canadian voyageurs, later becoming the village spot of wamdering
tribes of Sioux, Grey Cloud Island evolved as the picturesque setting
for an agricultural commmity of half-breeds end some whites. Today,
its original surface has been greatly chapged by the passing of time

and the inroads of civilizations But, time innits passing, has not

diminished its appeal to men and women who love the oub=of~the-way

places. It still remains an island whose romantic past beckons the
inquisitive explorer to wander over its surface trying to imagine
scenes which took place theres

w30
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PIXKE'S ISLAND

ASSIGNMENT: Islends in the
Mississippi river.

By: L.S.Staples.

Pike's Island, located in the Mississippi river at
the confluence of that stream with the Minnesota river at Fort
Snelling, was named in honor of Lieutenant Zebulon Méntgomery
Pike, discoverer of Pike's Peak and who, in 1805, negotiated the
purchase of a large tract of land from the Sioux Indians for a
United States military reserve and upon which Fort Snelling sub=-
sequently arose in 1820-24.

During the thirty-four years of his life Lieut. Pike
lived antadventurous and brilliaent military career. Few men of
his time managed to cram more thrilling experiences into their
allotted time on earth than he did. Born at Lamberton, New Jer-
sey, in 1779, he was taken to Pennsylvania in his early childhood.
At the age of fifteen he entered the United States army and, at the
age of twenty, was promoted to the rank of first lieutenant. Five
years later, or the year of 1805, he received orders which marked
the beginning of a series of adventures and which ended with his

death in 1813.

During the same year that Lieutenant Pike received his




PIKE'S ISLAND. Page 2.

commission, or the year & 1800, Spain receded that indefinite tract

of land, lying west of the Mississippi river, to France. On April
30,1803, Napolean sold this tract to the United States, the sale be-
coming mown in history as the "Louisiana Purchase." This territory
included all of that vast territory west of the river, except portions
west of the Rockies occupied by Spain, and then extended as far north
ag the British fTerritory.

Previous to the year Spain ceded Louisiana to the French
the Spaniards did no exploration in the region of the Upper Mississ—
ippi. As the United States received this territory by purchase in
1803, it was not long before efforts were made to send exploring par-
ies into the new possession. Two years after France made the sale,
or the year of 1805, Lieut. Pike received his orders to conduct an
expedition to the Upper Mississippi, the purposes of which were to
negotiate treaties with the Indians and to make agents of the North-
west company,and other fur traders gperaging in the new possession,
conform with the laws of the United States.

On the ninth day of August, 1805, Pike's exploring party,
congisting of himself, one sargeant, two corporels and seventeen pri-
vates, embarked in a seventy foot keel boat at their encampment near
St.louis. Hundreds of miles of unsurveyed territory, inhabited by host-
ile Indians, lay before them. Provisions had been taken along with them
which, at the utmost, would -last them for four months. By the 13th of
September ‘the party had passed the mouth of the Black river and, at
noon on the sixteenth of September, reached the grand encampment then
located below Lake Pepin. Having a favorable wind they hoisted sail

and continued their journey into the lakes. Night found them only part-

iglly through the lake and a terrific storm forced them to seek the

safety of a harbor on the east shore.
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After a harrowing experience of the night before Lieut.
Pike resumed his journey the next day. Reaching Maiden Rock and
continuing to the mouth of the Canoe river Pike was met by a band
of Sioux under the leadership of Red Wing, second chief in command
of the Sioux. After explaining the purpose of his visit Pike ob-
tained a promise from the chief to accompany them to the river St.
Pierre(Minnesota river). On the evening of September the 19th Pike
and his party had passed the St.Croix river and encamped for the
night at a spot described by Pike as "where stands a large veinted
stone," later known as Red Rock, a village located on the east bank
of the river & few miles below St.Paul. Continuing up the river they
reached a Sioux village(Kaposia) situated at the head of Pigls Eye
Islend, just below the bluffs of Indian Mounds, St.Paul. The village
was deserted by the braves, but the women surrounded Pike's party in
unusually telkative excitement. Stopping there but a short while Pilke

continued up the river. A short way above the levee at St.Paul Pike

observed a white flag on shore. Approaching the spot where the flag

was hanging, Pike found that it was suspended over a scaffold,on which
were laid four dead bodies.ExzZmining them he found they were wrapped
in blankets and were the remains of two Sioux women, one of their
children and a relative, citing, in his record of the trip, "this is
the manner of Sioux burial when persons die a natural death; but when
they are killed they suffer them to lay unburied." Re-embarking on the
keel boat Pike continued up the river to the mouth of the St.Pierre,or
Minnesota. Here he stopped, making his encampment on the northeast
corner of the island which bears his name, on Saturday night, September
21,1805.

On the morning of September 22nd, which was Sunday, Pike
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busied himself measuring the river. Getting into a batteaux he went-
down the river a short way to what he believed to be its widest point.
Going to shore with the boat he carefully swung it around, pointing it
towards the opposite shore. Taking measured-strokes Pike rowed fo the
other 8ide-ef the river, end later made an entry in his record that the
trip across was made "with forty strokes of my oars.'

Rowing about the Minnesota river's mouth he noted that the
high bluffs,which bordered both sides of the Mississippi and the Minne-
sota, would make ideal locations for a fort and military reserve. He
made note of this as well as remarking about the beauty of the scenery
and the river at this spot,stating "the water of the Mississippi, since
we passed Lake Pepin, has been remarkably red; and where it is deep, ap-
pears as black as ink. The waters of the St.Croix and St.Peters appear
blue and clear, for a considerable distance below their confluence."

All of that balmy Sinday afternoon of September the 22nd,
1805, Lieutenant Pike surveyed the river and made observations for
the reccomendation of a site for a military reserve. Shortly before
sunset Little Crow, grandfather of the Little Crow who figured so
prominently in the Sioux massacre of 1862, and one hundred and fifty
warricrs arrived on the hill ewertooking Pikels island and where
Fort Snelling is now located. Observing Pike and his party on the
island the band of Sioux gave the men of the expedition a savage sal-
ute with gzun fire. After this gesture they descended the hill to meet
Pike and make arrangements for the council,which Pike requested, for
the next day.

On Monday, September 2341805, Pike had his men ercct a

council tent on the beach at Pike's island. Using the sails of his

boats they built a crude bower or shed and awaited coming of the

various bands with their head chiefs. Around noon Sioux were ready
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for the council. Into the hastily constructed bower entered Pike
accompanied by his interpreters, traders, and the Sioux chiefs con-
cerned in the negotiations, namely, Le Petit Corbeau(Little Crow),

Le Fils de Penichon( son of Pinchon, a French trader), Le Grand Part-
isan( known only here), Le Originale leve(Standing Mcose), Le Bucasse
(Broken Arm), and Le Boeuf que Marche(Walking Buffale). Standing be-
fore the assembled group Pike addresse@ them through his interpreter

as followst: (Quotes from Lieut.Pikes speech)

"Brothers: I am happy to meet you here at this counecil
fire, which your father has sent me to kindle, and to take you by the
hands as our children, we having lately acquired from the Spanish(French)
the extensive territory of Louisianas Our general has thought proper to
send out a number of his young warriors to visit all his red children, to
tell them his will, and to hear what requests they may have to make of
their father. I am happy the choice has fallen on me to come this roadj
as I find my brothers, the Sioux, ready to listen to my words."
"Brothgrs: It is the wish of our government to establish mil-

itary posts on the Upper Mississippi at such places as may be thought ex-
pedients I have therefore examined the country, and have pitched on the
mouth of the St.Croix, this place(mouth of the.Minnesota), and the Falls
of St.Anthony. I therefore wish you to grant to the United States nine
miles square at St.Croix; and at this place, from a league belcw the con=-
fluence of St.Peters(Minnesota) and the Mississippl to a league above
t.Anthony, extending 3 leagues on each side of the river(nine miles). As
we are a people who are accustomed to have all our acts writtgn down, in

order to have them harded down to our children, I have drmwm up a form

of an agreement which we will both sig‘é'in the presence of the traders now

pmesent. After we know the terms we will fill it up, and have it read and
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irterpreted to you." (end of quotes)
The interpeeters, by voice end with liberal use of the

purpose in rquesting a grant

Indian sigzn language; made known Pike'!s
of their land. Intensely, the Sioux chiefs listened while Pike explained
that the post the government wished to establish were intended as a ben=-
efit to them through their communication with the whites. He went further
to explain that it was the government's intentions to establish trading
hese forts in which the Indians could procure ell their needs
they had received from the French and the British,
traders could afford to sell theme To the latter he
referred to them as "single men who come far in small boats. But your
fathers are many and strong; they will come with a strong arm, in large
boats." He pointed out that there would be'chiefs" at the Fort who could
take care of the needs of the Sioux without them having to go to St.Louis,

and that 3se chie would watch the traders who came to the Sioux to

Before the conclusion of his long speech to the

/e

them that the government wexe going to take steps to pr

-
sale of whisky te them by the traders. He stated that the selling
run to them would have to stop as time had prox

for the Sioux than good.

Trying to effect ank agreement of peace between the Sioux and

Chippewas Pike stated "another object é% your f has at heart is to

endeavor to make peace between you and the Chippewas. You have been a
long time at war, and when will you stop? If neither side will lay down
the hatchet, your paths will always be red with blood."

To this latter admonishment the Sioux chiefs shook their heads

in doubtful disagreement. Some of the chiefs pointed out that they could

not guarantee the conduet of their young warriors who had many things to
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the Chippewas. The traditional state of warfare which
sxisted between the two tribes could not be wiped out by the mere
sture of a promise. Pike pointed out, however, that he was going
among the Chippewas to exact thelr promise, but the Sioux chiefs

doubted that such be worth much.

Not wishing to make an issue of the matter and feeling
sure he could accomplish peaceful relations between the two tribes,
Pike changed the subject and instructed the Sioux chiefs that the

moment had arrived to sign the grant.

A strange sight would have greeted the observer's eyes
on Pike's Island when k X he chiefs to sign their names to
land grant peper. Some of the chiefs pulled away from the circle
and debated the question of signing between themselves. All of them
immeadiately refused, stating they considered their "word of honor"

sufficient to bind them.

Pike wes unusually patient and diplomatic with them. He
pointed out that,so far as he was concerned,their word s good and
that it was not om théiraccount that he wished them to sign. But their
Great Father in Washington would not understand that the land had been
given to him if they had i their signatures or signs being
proof that they had so

On hearing this explanation the:chiefsiagreed among them
that they would sign. Even then considerable persuasion was necessary
to induce them to merely touch the pen as it was placed on the written
treaty.

ioux land grant for a military reserve

was the first conveyance of an interest in land executed in Minnésota and,

ok place on historic Pike's Island, this interesting and

historical document is:worth being reviewed by a reference to the text
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which follows:
"Wheras, at a conference held between the United States
of America and the Siou ytion of Indiansg, Liet.Z.M.Pike, of the

o
i

army o chiefs and warriors of the seid
tribe, have agreed t he following articles, which, wt ratified

and approved by the proper authority, shall be binding on both part-

Article I. That the Sioux nation grants unto the United

tates for the purpose of establishing a military post, nine miles
square at the mouth of the St.Croix, also, from below the confluence
of the Mississippi and St.Peter!'s, up the Mis DY to include the
falls of St.Anthony, extending nine miles on each side of the river.
That the Sioux nation grants to the United States, the full soverignty
and power over said districts, forewer, without any let or hinderance
whatsoever.

Article II. That in consideration of the above grants,

the United States (left blank, to be filled in

later)

Article III. The United States promise, on their part,
to permit the Sioux to pass, repass, hunt, or make other uses of the
said districts, as they have formerly done, without any other exception
but those specified in article first.

In testimony hereof, we, the undersigned, have hereunto set

our hande' and seals, at the mouth of the river St.Peter's, on the twenty-

third day of September, one thousand, eight hundred and five.

Signed., Z.M,Pike, first Lieutenant(seal)
and agent at the above conference.

Le Petit Corbeau, his X mark(seal)

Way Aga Enagee, his X mark(seal)
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It was not until April 16,1808 that the Senate ratified

this {reaty, filling the blank in article II by adding after "States"

Wghall, prior to taking possession thereof pay the Sioux
two thousand dollars, or deliver the value thereof in such goods and
merchandise as they shall choose."

As soon as the instrument was signed, Lieut.Pike distrib-
uted presents among the chiefs and warriors whose value was about two
hundred dollars. In addition to the presents Pike and the traders
gave out sixty gallons of whisky. Within a half hour after the dis-
tribution of presents and liquor the Sioux had departed to their villages.
Thus, by the instrument they had left behind, they had ceded 100,000
acres of their land for $2,200.00 and sixty gallons of liquor,

Critics, in later years, pointed out that this treaty marked
the beginning of unrest among the Sioux nation. Folwell, in his "History
of Minnesota," adds to their criticism by stating "it should be noted

that one of the seven bands of the Mdewakanton tribe assumed to convey

the rights not only of the other bands but alsc of the other tribes which

made up the Sioux nation." Others state that the United States had no
reason to stipulate for soverignity as they had obtained that by the
Louisiana Purchase. Still other crities point out that all parties con-
cerned in signing the treaty were "incompetent," that Pike was not authqr-
ized to act as an agent of the United States, that the descriptions were
Thopelessly indefinite," and that their were mo signatures of witnesses
on the conveyance. Regardless of the disputes which followed the signing

f the treaty, by this instrument that the United States govern-

the first steps to establish posts In Minnesota so that it
for settlers to move in.
Anxious to proceed up the Mississippi river to its source

Pike obtained a number of smaller boats than his keel boat, which he
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determined to leave at the island, and prepared for the upstrean

Jjourney. Throughout all of September 24,1805, he had his men

the boats with equipment and provisions. Some time during the day

an incident occurred which might have ended in bloodshed.Had it not

been for mutual undérstanding between Pike and the Sioux nation, Pike

and all of his men might have been killed.

o

o

During the process of loading the boats Pike's flag of
the United States fell into the river and, un-noticed, floated down
the river. When it was discovered that the flag was missing Lieut.
Pike sent one of his men down the river in search of it. Returning
without the flag the soldier reported that it must have sunk to the

»
Cocddy

bottom of the river. With considerable misgivings Pl{e dﬁ%eﬁéeé the
continvation of his journey without it,as he desired to gain the Ind-
an's respect for his gevernment's emblem of authority.
Eaerly in the morning of September 25th Pike
by Little Crow. Coming from his village at the break of dawn he told
Pike that he had found the flag and feared that Pike's party were all
killed, the flag having been thrown overboard. When Pike asked Little
Crow where the flag had been found.the chief explained it had been
found floating in the river in fromtof his village, fifteen miles
down stream from the island. He also added that the discovery had been
made at an opportuwje moment as a chief namal Qutarde Blanche(White Buz-
zard) had had affray with a wairior- and had his lip cut off. Coming
to Little Crow he told him "that His face was his looking glass, that
it was spoiled, and that he was determined on revenge." All partie
concerned were priming their gunsg and preparing for action when the
ppeared. Astonished at seeing it and finding the staff broken
Little Crow stated "that a thing so scared had not been taken from

Pike's boat without visdlence." In view of that 1 showed the warriors

where it would.be only proper for them to patch wp their quarrel until
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they had revenged the cause of Pike. Agreeing the warriors tempor-
arily forgot their grievance and accompanied Little Crow to the is-
land to find out "what dogs had done that thing, in order to take
steps to get satisfaction of those who had done the mischief."

that Pike nor his men had been harmed Little Crow showed signs

was very pleased.

In his journal Pike states he asked the chief what he had
done with the flag. Little Crow explained that upon finﬁinglit he had
it placed where it would dry, ad '.g that he would have the flag brought
up to Pike the same day. As a reward for their friendly gesture Pike

e Crow and the warriors W"five yards of blue ghroud, three
yards of calice; one hankerchief, one carrot of tobacco, and one kmife."

Late in the same day of Little Crow's visit to Pike to in-
quire of his safety Pike embarked for the upper M sipp In those
days, the repids of the falls of Sr.Anthony. extended down the river from
the falls to within a short distance of the confluence of the Minnesota
river with the Mimsissippi. With great effort Pike's men poled the boats
up the river. Darkness found them only three miles upstream from the
island and, as the men were very tired, Pike decided to make camp for

the night.

Arising early the morning of September 26,1805, Pike and

<]

his men continued up the river, fighting the rapids to the foot of the

falls, arriving there around three o'clock in the afternoon. Here, on
le of the river, Pike had the men unload his boat, Having the

principal part of the cargo carried over the portage. The other boat,

however, ran into difficulties, being unable to pole the boat over the

last shoot. The men of this boat encamped for the night within 600(six

hundred) yards of the falls, Pike placing his tent gfha spot very tlose

.

to the present power house of the University of Minnesota.
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Few people of this generation realize how severe the
rapids below the falls of St.Anthony were in the old days. Pike
states "the rapids mentioned in this day's march might properly
Ve called a continuation of the falls of St.Anthony for they are

equally entitled to this appellation with the falls of the Deleware

and Susquehenna." (quotes from Pike's journal) As they were poling
up the river it seems apparent that-Pike and his men were very busy
controlling the boats, .} from being submerged in the whirl-
pool, as Pike mekes no mention that he noted the rapids which led away
from Minnehaha Falls, nor does he mention that he knew this= latter
alls existed. It is sufficient to know that, from his description,
the river's current must have been very fast and the water treacherous.
Thenext—day—ef Sentember the 27th Pike's men managed to
bring over the residue of the cargo of his boat over
cribing the portage Pike stated it was on the east side of the river®
Folwell, in his "History of Minnesota," admires Pike's description of
the falls of St.Anthony adding that the young lieutenant gave a more
complete description of this scenic sight than Father Hennepin. TFrom
his ;e8, at the end of his "journal," he states: "The place where
the river falls over the rocks appears to be gbout fifteen(1l5) feet
perpendicular, the sheet being broken by one large island on the east
and a small one on the west; the former commencing below the shoot and

~

extending five hundred(500) yards; the river them falls through a con-

tinued bed of rocks, with a descent of at least fifty(50) feet perpen-—

dicular in the course of half a mile. Thence to the St.Peter's, a dist-

ance of eleven miles(ll mi.) by water, there is almost one continued rap-
, aggravated by the interuption of twelve(l2) small islands. The carry-
» place(r ag 1as two hills, one of twenty-five feet, the other of

twelve(1l2), with an elevation of forty-five degrees, and is about three-

A
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quarter mile in length, Above the shoot the river is of con=
siderable width, but below, at this time, I can easily cast a
stone over it," (end of quotes)

On the 28th of September Pike had his barge put in
the river above the Falls of S5t .Anthony, While his men were
busy with the work of putting the boat in the river seven Ind-
iens, all painted black, aeppeared on the bluffs near the falls,
Pike assumed that they were a small party #f Sioux who were ob=-
stinate over the treaty and, having left his guns at camp, de=
cided to handle the situation with as much diplomacy as possible.

The seven Sioux approached Pike's party., They were
well armed with guns, bows and arrows, as well as war clubs. Someh
of them had cases of dueling pistols, Pike anticipated trouble,

At the time of their coming Pike was rationing out
a dram of whiskey to his men, One of the Indians approached Pike
and, in a gesture of friendliness, Pike offered him a cup of the
liquor, Being cautious, however, he did not offer the spirits to
the rest of them, knowing that the drink would encourage them to
start an argument,

Within a short while the liquor began to have its
effects on the first Indian, Pike noticed that he was carrying
an interestingelk-horn war club and, desiring to purchase it as
a curio, he tried to purchase it of the warrior but, owing to
the whiskey's effect, the Indian refused to part with it, asking
for still more liquor, Pike refused to give it to him as he re=-
alized the situation was becoming strained and he still wanted to
avoid trouble,

While this situation may seem of no importance it was

of very great importance to Pike, Vizualizing the scene and knowing

Pike's predicament the circumstances surrounding this incident were
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of very great importance, indeed, Pike had just completed the
treaty with the Sioux chiefs by which the govermment would re-
ceive a military reservation., He was not positive that all of
the Sioux nation hed accepted the purchase of their land and the
conditions thereof., He was still in hostile country. The ad-
vice from his interpreters, in handling a situation of this nature,
was taken with a"grain of salt," If there was to be blood spilled
with seven representatives of the great Sioux tribe there was danger
that the incident would spoil all of his plans, So Pike remained
cool and collected until the seven wandering warriors departed,
All during the time of this trying situation it was
raining very hard, Afber the Indians departed Pike decided to
attempt to get his other boat over the portage. Taking his men
to the spot where the boat was to be pulled up a slight hill he
bade the men to hoist it. Straining with all their might the men
tried to pull the boat up the bluff, Suddenly, the props gave
way and the boat plunged to the water's edge. Fortunately, no
one was hurt and, as it was raining hard aend getting dark, Pike
decided to leave it lay where it fell until the next morning,
Throughout the next day of September the 29th, which
was Sunday, Pike and his men worked to get his second boat over
the Falls of St.Anthony. Late in the afternoon they succeeded
in getting the craft ower the portage. At this point Pike mentions
that the men were completely exhausted, preferring to rest rather
than eat, After the evening meal Pike went to his tent to make
an entry in his journal, Picking up his quillhe states (quotes’;
"fhis day I had but fifteen men:out:of twanty-two; the rest were

sick," Farther in the narrative he adds "this voyage could have

been performed with great convenience if we had taken our departure
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in June.® With this and somewhat discouraged he closed his
journal for the day, retiring for the night,

Literally performing the duties of commanding officer,
surveyor, astronomer, clerk, 8py, guide and hunter, Lt;Piks con-
tinued his journey up the Mississippi river from St.Anthony Falls ,
Frequently he was compelled of necessity to presede his party far

in advance so that he might reconnoiter, By the sixteenth of Oca-

tober they had advanced up the stream to a point within a short

distance of Little Falls, Here they were overtaken with a very

heavy snow storm, Pikes boats had sprung many leaks, The dis-

mal prospect of plunging into the cold water and wading the

chutes up to their neck was not relished. As Pike had designs

of reaching the Crow Wing river before the ice formed on the river,

he now saw that it would be impossible to carry out his plans, Having

bivouacked the night before at a very beautiful spot situated fouwr

miles below Little Falls on the west bank of the river, about eighty

rods from the mouth of the Swan river, Pike decided to return to

that point and build a cabin and stockede for the winter months,
Twelve days after his return to the spot where he had

his fort built Pike, on October the 23th, had his men load two dug-

outs with provisions and ammunition. One of the crude crafts, loaded

with ammunition, sprung a leak, sinking immeadiatlely to the bottom

of the river. Pike instructed his men to chop out another and, while

a part of them was busy with this task, Pike, with the obhers, raised

the sunken craft, As he desired to salvage the powder Pike spread

it on blankets, building a huge bonfire around them. Being a slow

process Pike decided to experiment in drying the powder in iron pots

which he had brought along to cook food in, Placing the powder in

thé‘pots and building a. good fire under it Pike awaited results,

Within a few moments an explosian took place which nearly come
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blowing up three of his men,

Beset with delays and realizing that winter was fast
setting in Pike knew now it was getting too late to think of nave
igating the river further, Deciding to wait until the river froze
over he had his men build wooden sleds which could be used to
carry his supplies over the ice, But the season, being unusually
mild, the stream refused to freeze, Getting impatient to reach

his despyination at the source of the Mississippi, wherever:that

might be, Pike determined to ocontinue his journey by land and

water,

Undismayed by the many happenings which seemed to
hold him back from his purpose Pike, 6n December 1lOth, left his
post near Little Falls with sleds and one dugout., Towing the boat
over the partially ice~covered river was toilsome and difficult,
Wherever it was possible they left the river and tried to follow
the stream along its banks. As the sleds were heavily loaded and
the snow was melting Pike found that it would be necessary to cache
some of his supplies, Even then his sleds broke through:the thin
ice covering the calm places in the stream near the river's shore
line, One of them, breaking through an exceptionally thin spot,
plunged Pike's own baggage and ammunition to the bottom of the
stream, Only the fact that the powder had been placed in water=
proof kegs saved all of the ammunition from complete destruction.
If this hadn't been the case Lt.Pike and his party would have had
to right about face and return, with all haste, to St.Louis. To
add more titantiec misgivings to his venture Pike's tent caught fire
on a bitterly cold night, As Pike had stationed a sentry before
he tetired the watchful soldisr roused Pike in sufficient time to
save the lieutenant's life, Rushing into the flames Pike pulled

the powder kegs to a place of safety, but was unable to save his
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"leggins,mockinsons, socks and so forth,"(quotes from Pike's Journ=
al), Soon after this a cold snap lowered over the wilderness,forcimg
Pike to have his men build fires every few miles to keep from freezing
to death, Regardless of their attempt to keep from freezing many of
Pike's men received frogzen fingers, noses, as well as feet and toes,
To make the going more miserable, snow had fallen to the depth of
three feet,

Suffering from the severe cold and extremely weary with
fatigue Lt.Pike, marching in advance of his party§ with a corporal,
managed to stumble late at night through the open gate of the Notrth-
western Fur company's stockade located at Sandy lake, Here Pike was
received with the ubtmost hospitality, Five days after this the bal-
ance of his party arrived at the post, Gremt, the agent of the fur

company, saw that they were housed in comfortable quarters, Pike

states that he found that the agent was living in "tolerable come

fort" in the wilderness, pointing out that the agent had horses,
plenty of potatoes which had been grown at the post, and all the
wild game and fish that might be needed, Here, Pike states, the
main food used by Grant and his engagees was"wild oats," Historians
believe Pike meant "wild rice" which the lieutenant states Grant
purchased from the Indians at the price of a dollar and a half a
bushel, Pike was surprised at thevhigh price of this wild food,
He adds that flour was a "half dollar" a pound, common salt at a
dollar also, salt pork at the unheard of price of eighty cents a
pound and, worst of all, tea at four dollars and a half a pound,
Pike rested twelve days at the Northwestern Fur comw
pany's post at Sandy lake, While he wés there he decided to change
his mode of transpottation., To this point they had come with crudely
built sledges and hollowed out dugouts, Observing that Grant was

using a sort of crude tobaggan to haul furs Pike had his men construct
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PIG!S EYE ISLAND

ASSIGNMENT: Islands in the Miss.
By: L.S.Staples.

Historic Pig's Eye Island, pre-settlement rendezvous
of French-Canadian voyageurs, lies on the east side of the main
channel of the Mississippi river, about two miles south of Indian
Mounds Park, St.Paul. 0ld Man River, carrying its cargo of sludge
throughout ages past, left a large portion of its heavy burden at
this point, as if to lighten its load so that it might flow more
freely and unhampered on its long journey to the sea. Civilization,
too, finds ways of lightening its locad when the weight of it becomes
embarrassing, as.it' did when it finally forced the man, from whom this
island derived its name, to seek his home here Pig!'s Eye Par-
rant.

In Minnesota's early history, few men had a greater desire
to emulate the ways of 0ld Man River than Pig's Eye Parrant. From his
birth to his death he, too, like the river, desired to live his life

free and unhampered. But, in choosing this course of life, he ran into

many obstructions, Some he:passed by the sheer strength of his obstinate

nature. Others, like military law and the goéd.opinion of early settlers,
succeeded eventually to confine his troublesome activitlies within bounds

which, to him, were too narrow. When he found his little world was becoming
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too oppressive, he disappeared from the pages of Minnesota's early
history like the flame of a match when blown out by the wind.
While histories of Minnesota do not state the actual
birthplace of Pierre Parrant, it is quite probable that he was
born within the viecinity of Sault St.Marie, Canada, the date re=
maining unlmown. In his book,"A History of the City of St.Paul
and the County of Ramsey," J.Fletcher Williams states that Pierre
Parrant came to Mendota in the year of 1832. Even then, it is found,
that Parrant was having his trouble with public opinion as Williams
states his removal from Sault St.Marie came about "through some ir-
regularities of conduct distasteful to the good people there."
Something startling and upsetting in the person of Pierre
Parrant disturbed the early settlers at Mendota. Men who knew him
then described him as being a man of about sixty years of age, and

with sinister features. From all accounts he seems to have been "a

coarse, 1ll-looking, low-browed fellow, with only one eye, and that

a sinister looking one." Besides these offensive attributes they
attached to Parrant,they disliked him for his abominable Englirsh,
his excessive drinking habits,and his intermittent licentiousness. No
one spoke in defence of Parrant's actions, nor sought the causes for
his way of living. He was a product of that lawless era which Jjust
preceded the establishment of Fort Snelling and, like an old timer of
the older order, refused to adjust himself to their way of living. For
that reason,' perhaps,:, he turned to the illicit liquor business as a
means of livelyhood. And then Parrant's troubles began.

Sometime during the year of 1833, while loitering around
Mendota awaiting an opportunity to hire out as a voyageur, Pierre Par=-

rant must have reached the conclusion that "voyageurs" were men of the

past. Seeking other fields of employment was heyonﬂLParrant's dignity.
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Soldiering could not have appealed to him and settling on a claim,
tilling the soil and learning how to farm must have been out of the
question. It must be remembered he had lived a free life and was un-
ahle‘to endure the discipline required of a soldier. Nor could a man
of his personality remain shackled to the soil. Parrant determined to
seek other fields.

During the many years of his life in the wilderness,Par-
rant had observed how easy it had been for others to obtain their de-
sires from the Indiams by the liberal use of liquor. Men,of his ac-
quaintance, no¥ doubt, had made fortunes. Parrant thought he could,
too. All that was needed was a good spot, the courage to defy the
law, and a few barrels of whisky, So crossing the river at Mendota
Parrant selected a site on the north shore of the Mississippi at a
place later known as Fountein Cave. Here he erected a log cabin ang,
without realizing the historical significance of his act, became the

first citizen @f the future city of St.Paul.

Within a short time after the completion of his cabin,

Pierre Parrant began to sell whisky to the Indians as well as the
whites. Soon. the soldiers at Fort Snelling, desiring to drown the
monotony of their life at the frontier post.in whisky, came down to
Parrant's hovel at the cave. Here they would stay, consuming great
quantities of Parrant's amber-colored fluid he was wont to call
"whisky," but which in reality was highly diluted moonshine tinted
with molasses. Returning to the fort in a drunken condition they
would fail to report for duty the next day. Guards were sent to
seek them out and, finding them in a drunken stupor, placed them
in the guard house or compelled them to wear a ball and chain. Many
times the officers at the fort swore they would tear Parrant's cab-

in down but, for some reason, no record remains that they did. Some
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early writers have hinted that sometimes,"even the officer's supply

of liquor became exhausted and, at such times, had various ways of

replenQishing their supply." After all, officers are human and, per-

haps, Parrant also carried a "better grade" of whisky for his more
discerning trade.

While Major Taliaferro was Indian Agent at Fort Snelling
he revorted that, in 1835, he prohibited Parrant from coming into In-
dian country on account of Parrant's illicit trade in whisky. Parrant
defied this order. It was contradistinctly opposed to his "free and
unhampered" way of living. He continued his practice, compelling Major
Taliaferro to issue another order that Parrant had to obey, threatening
to send a military force after him and remove him to Prairie du Chien.
Very much chastened Parrant stopped his illicit liquor traffic with the
Indians, remaining at Fountain Cave until the year of 1839.

Whether through causes of extravagent living,or a desire to
purchase larger stocks of liquors,Parrant was compelled to seek a loan
on hieg Fountain Cave claim which eventually caused him to lose it. Going
to William Beaumette of Mendota, Parrant borrowed $90 from him, giving
as security a judgement note which fell due in 1839. Before the ex-
piration of the note Beaumette, needing money, disposed of the note to
John Miller, the stone mason of Mendota who built General Sibley's home
which still stands. During the month of May,1839, Miller went.to see
Parrant to effect a collection of the $90. Parrant was unable to pay it,
relinquishing his Fountain Cave claim to Miller.

After losing his placngierre Parrant, still seeking to live
an unfettered life, staked a claim fronting the river,"extending: from
Minnesota to Jackson street, and then back to the bluff. On a spot near
the bank of the river, at about where the foot of Robert street now is,

he erected another cabin in which to live and continue his illicit liquor
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traffic. Here it was he obtained the name of "Pig's Eye," which, in- ( -

cidentally, was the name applied to St.Faul and which came about i's fashion?

One day, during the year of 1839, a young Canadian by the name
of Edmund Brissette was stopping at Parrant's cabin. Desiring to send a
letter to Joseph Renshaw Brown, at that time,operating a trading post at
Grey Cloud Island, he began wondering where he should date the letters
(quotes from "A History of the City of St.Paul and the County of Ram-
gey," by J.Fletcher Williams) "I looked up inquiringly at Parrant, and,
.seeing his old crooked eye scowling at me, it suddenly popped inte my
head to date it at Pig's Eye, feeling sure that the place would be rec-
ognized, as Parrant was well known along the river. In a little while
an answer was received directed to me at Pigls Eye. I told the joke
to some of the boys, and they made lots of fun of Parramt. He was very
mad and threatened to lick me, but never tried to execute it." (end of
quotes)

Within a year after Pig's Eye Parrant staked his claim upon
the present site of St.Paul and built his hovel, nine additional cabins
were built by a mixed group of French-Cahadians and Swiss=-French. During
this same year more French-Canadians, voyageurs in the employment of the
American Fur:Company, settled on the island that eventually became Pig's

- Eye. This was &n ideal spot, they thought, for small acreages. More came,
and soon a small settlement was formed which they called Grand Marais.
Soon, this settlement was to have Pigls Eye Parrant as one of its citizens,
as fast happening events were forcing him to move there.

On May 6,1840, an event took place in Minnesota's early hist-
ory which had far-reaching consequences. It was on this date that the

armed forces at Fort Snelling drove the settlers off of the government

reservation. Some of these settlers were thée: Swiss who had come from

the Selkirk settlement at what is now Pembina,No.Dak. Others were mixed




PIG!'S EYE ISLAND Page 6.
French~Canadians and Swise=French. They had settled on the govern=
ment reservation established by Pike and were squatters on the land.
As they were there against government orders and,as there was evid-
ence that some of these settlers had been selling liquor to the sold-
iers and neighboring Indians, the government determined to remove
them. Warning them to move and the settlers not hegding the warn=-
ing the armed forces at the fort drove them off, destroying the
settler's cabins and forcing them to seek claims off of the reser-
vation. Some of them settled near Pig'e Eye Parrant's place, in-
creasing the settlement that was to become St.Paul. Others moved

to a spot north of St.Paul, now known as Little Canada. A few built
cabins on Pig's Eye Island.

Amongz the early settlers who were ejected off the reser—
vation, was Ben Gervais. Instead of seeking a new location he sought
out Pig!'g Eye Parrant, then living in his uncompleted hovel on the
river bank at the foot of Robert street. After some discussion, he
purchased Parrant's claim for $10 (ten dollars). Parrant then moved
further east and staked out another claim on the lower levee. Build=-
ing himself another cabin he continued to ply his profitable liquor
business until the year of 1843, when he scld his claim to Louis Rob=
ert, an early pioneer.

014 Pig's Eye Parrant mnuat havé now reallzed that civile
ization was moving in. Not desiring to be cramped for space in which
to live his 1life freely, he began looking around him for a suitable
spot to carry on his liquor trade with the Indiang=——--=a place where
he would not be molested by the objections of the settlers. Going
down the river from St.Paul he cast his one good eye over the settle-

ment of Grand Marais on the island. This was an ideal spot. Nature

had left the island richly covered with brush and trees as well as

leaving the east side of the island an almost impenetrable morass.
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Without Xmowing what trouble awaited him, Pig's Eye Parrant staked
out a claim. Unfortunately or fortunately, the property belonged
to someone slse, and a dispute followed.

As stated before a group of French-Canadian voyageurs
had previously settled at Grand Marais. ‘Among these men was a man by
the name of Le Claire. As Pig's Eye Parrant had staked his claim on

a part of Le Claire's land, ap argument resulted when Le Claire made

the discovery. While no immeadiate results followed the argument Le

Claire soon had Parrant summoned to appear before Squire Joseph Brown,
then Justice of Peace at Grey Cloud Island,

History states that there was much heated swearing in the
cabinecourtroom of Justice Brown during the hearing of the case of Le
Claire versus Parrant. It is said that the testimony became so "strong"
that Justice Brown was in doubt as how to render a decision. Having an
ardent love of a joke the amiable justice informed the litigators that
neither party had a valid claim to the land in litigation, as no proof
had been presented to the court that either Le Claire or Parrant had
staked out the property in a lsegal manner, in the presence of wit-
nesses. With that in view, therefore, it would be only Just and right
that the property remianed without ownership until such time that either
Le Claire or Parrant complied with the law.

It was only natural that the consumation of this trial should
result in a race. It was about eight miles from Grey Cloud to Grand Mar—
ais, or Pig's Eye Island. Without further argument the contestants start-
ed off, eager and anxious to be the first to reach the claim. Being old
and not in good physical condition, Parrant was handicapped. Avarice,
however, seemed to give him strength and he pushed on., Le Claire, the

younger man, was more active. Soon he begen to outstrip Parrant as they
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ran through jungles and forest and over logs and through murky
sloughs. Long in advance of Parrant and obtaining witness, Le
Claire re-staked his claim. While he was complying with Justice
Brown's "law," the exhausted Parrant, weary and sick, furious and
threatening, arrived upon the scene of Le Claire's triumph. Jeers
and ridicule rewarded the loser.

But land was plentiful. Parrant sought another claim
close by on the island. Unable to stand the taunts of his misad=
venture, however, he sold the claim. Packing his belongings he
started out in the direction of Lake Superior, intending, perhaps, -
to return to his original hsunts at Sault St.Marie,Canada. The
whites claim he never reached his destination, "dying from a dis-
ease resulting from his own vices." To the contrary, however, the
Indians claim he was killed by a band of their fellows then on the
war path, Whoever may be right no document remains to prove eilther
side of the statements. All thgt is known of what happened to the
original founder of St.Paul and the man whose name finally became
attached to Pig's Eye Island is that, sometime around the year of
1844, Pig's Eye Parrant left the island and was never heard from
againe.

Shortly after the disappearance of Pig!s Eye Parrant
from Grand Marais Rev.lucian Galtier, seeking a site for a Cath=
olic church, was offered three different places; one called ILa
Point Basse; another near Kaposia, and a site at La Point Le Claire
(now Pig'gs Eye Island.). He objected to the Pig's Bye Island lo-
cation because he feared the island would be innudated during the
spring flood stage of the river stating that "thehideavwof building

a church, which might any day be swept down the river to St.Louis,

did not please me." In consequence he selected a spot on the bluffs
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of the settlement then known as"Pig's Eye" (Now Kellog Blvd.,St.Paul,
between Cedar and Wabasha streets) and, in 1841, assisted in erecting

a log churche Dedicating this humble edifice on November 1, 1841 to

the memory of Saint Paul, the apostle of nations, Rev.Caltier requested
that the settlement, thereafter, should be known by that name. Thus did
the fas#=growing settlement of Pig's Eye transcend to the more dignified
title of St.Paul.

PRE-SERTLEMENT Long before the white man settled at St.Paul Pig's Eye Island
was occupled by the Indians. Pre-historically speaking, the vicinity of
the island must have been the scene of many interesting happenings which
history will never be able to record. Captain Jonathen Cgrver, -an early
British explorer, was one of the first to leave a record of the burial
ceremony of the Dakotas. Coming to Minnesota in 1766 on an exploration
trip, Carver held a council with the Dakotas in a great cave at the base
of Dayton's blaff, St.Paul(now lmown as Carver's Cave). According to
Carver's narrative he became an eye-witness to an Indian funeral statingt
"When the Naudowessies(different tribes of the Sioux nation) bdbrought
the;r dead for interment to the great cave, I attempted to get an in-
gight into the remaining burial rites; but whether they chose to keep
this part of their custom secret from me, I could not discover. I found,
however, that they considered my curiosity as ill-timed, and therefore
I withdrew." The Indians did not bury the bones of their dead,which
they had previously bound up in buffalo skins, in the cave, but, as

Corver states, " at a little distance from this dreary cavern," where

"they alwaye bring the bones of their dead."

Dr.Warren Upham, in an article in the American Antiquarian,
volume 26, 1904, also verifies the fact that an ancient race of Indians
roamed about the vicinity of Pig's Eye Island, calling attention to this

interesting locality and giving details as to discoveries made in ex-
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cavating the mounds nearby. In one mound, located on Dayton's Bluff,

7o

were found eight stone~bex graves, or burial cists, containing a lot

of human bones.

In the year of 1805, or the year that Lieutenant Zebulon
Pike came to Minnesota to purchase military reservations from the
Indians and close British trading stts, the Sioux village of Kaposia
was located on the east bank of the Mississippi river near Grand Marais.
This village was the home of the Sioux or Dakota of the successive
hereditary chiefs named Little Crow. Pike saw it there as did Major
Stephen Long in 1817. The location of the village changed places many
times. At one time it was at the mouth of Phalen Creek, where it empties
into the Mississippi at St.Paul. Cass and Schoolcraft , in 1820, found
it at the latter location and visited at that place. By the year of 1835
Featherstonhaugh mentions that he noted it had been moved to a spot near
Grend Marais. After the signing of the Indian treaty of 1837, however,
by which the Sioux ceded their lands east of the Mississippi river, the
villaze was moved to a site on the west side of that stream, occupying
a spot at South Park, a suburb of South St.Paul. Here it stood when the
battle of Kaposia took place, which was fought on and within the immead=
iate vicinty of Pig's ‘Eye Island,

THE BATTLE OF KAPOSIA In the spring of 1841,the old feud between the Chippewa and
the Sioux broke out with fresh vigor. Three Chippewa braves, proceeding
to Fort Snelling, concealed themselves 1in a thicket near the fort, and
waited for an opportunity to pluck a few Sioux scalps. Soon Kaiboka, a
Sioux chief, accompanied by his son and another Indian, passed by the
waiting Chippewas who pounced on the Sioux, assassinating them and taking
their scelps. Then they departed quickly toward their village on the

upper St.Croix river.

Within a short time after this mirder, news was brought to
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Little Crow's village at Kaposia of the Chippewas breach of the
peace. The chief was enraged over this act. Forming a war party they
pursued the Chippewas to a point near the Falls of Saint Croix. Here
they encountered the Chippewa and, during the engagement, two of
Little Crow's sons were killed. Unable to éope with the Chippewas
and greatly uwutnumbered, part of the war party returned to Kaposia.
Another group of the Sioux entered the Chippewa tountry and went as
far as Pokegama, where there were many lodges of the Chippewa and a
missionary station. Here they attached the unsuspecting Chippewa,
but failed to have much of a battle. Instead of accomplishing their
aims this small band of Sioux, after losing two of their number, also
returned to their fillage of Kgposia.

It was only natural that the Chippewas would plan to re-
venge themselves upon the Sioux for this raid. After waiting a year,
they determined to destroy the Sioux at Little Crow'g village at Ka~
posia. In 1841 they formed a war party of about forty braves at Fond
du Lac(now Duluth), and then proceeded down the west bank of the St,.
Croix river. Along the way of their march they were joined by the
braves of the Mille Lac and St.Croix bands. By the time they arrived

on the high bluff back of Pig'g Bye Island, the raiders numbered about

one hundred. At around ten o'clock in the morning they sought hidiag

in Pine Coolie, a ravine in Battle Creek park, add sent out scouts to
reconnoiter.,

At the base of the dluffs, along the east side of the
Mississippi river and within the present limits of St.Paul, was an old
trail that led down the river to Point Douglas; much in the same manner
as the present paved interstate highway #61 leads to Hgstings and points

beyond. Along this road Henry Sinclair, a Red River half-breed, was

making his way on horseback toward Red Rock. Haliling him the Chippewas
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asked if he had seen any Sioux on the east side of the river. Sin-
clair was about to answer when his pony, startled by the quick rush of
the Chippewas from their ambush, bolted. Not trying to check him Sin-
clair let him gallop of to the Red Rock mission where he repcrted what
he had seen. Two Sioux were at the mission.and, upon hearing that
their enemy was on the way, rushed to Kaposia across the river to
warn their comrades.

By this time things were beginning to happen on the bottom

lands near Pig's Eye Island. Here Francie Gammel, a voyageur, residing

in a cabinon his claim with his Sioux wife and their baby boy, was un-

aware that the Chippewas were near them, On that same morning Rattler,
and old Indian and brother of the noted 0ld Bets of St.Paul fame, had
come to Gammel's place, bringing along his two wives and his infant son
and danghter. They had come to help the Gammels hoe corn. Gammel, his
wife, and one of the wives of Rattler, began working in the garden, leav~
ing the other Mys.Rattler and Rattler himself at the cabin. Close by the
three children were playing.

At that precise moment four Chippewa, reconnoitering in the
vicinity, came upon the Gammel party working in the field. Raising their
guns they fired a volley into thems One bullet killed Mrs.Rattler, an=
other mortally wounded Mrs.Gammel. Picking up his stricken wife Gammel
carried her to the cabin, the Chippewas following in pursuit. Rushing
into the house the revengeful Chippewas scalped Mrs.Gammel ir her hus-
band's arms, then retreated, not realizing that Ryttler and his other
wife were in another room of the cabin.

Reaching for a gun Gammel went to the door and fired at the
departing Chippewas, one of his shots wounding a brave in the leg. Stop~
ping, the Chippewas looked about to wreck further vengeance on Gammels Ob=

gserving the little son of Rgttler trying to hid himself in the bushes,
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they seized and decepitated him. Sémehow they failed to see the little
son of Gammel and the deughter of Rattler, for they departed without
harming them,

Returning to the Sioux of Little Crow's cillage at Kaposia
it is found that, upon the arrival of their two braves from Red Rock to
warn them of the Chippewas' presence, the men of the village were at the
height of a drunken spree. Sobering quickly, upon hearing the news of
the Chippewa war party at Pig'g Eye, great excitement prevailed among
the Sioux. Grabbing their guns they hurried across the river and rushed
toward Pig's Eye Island. By this time the Chippewa had taken up a place
on the island and awaited the coming of the Sioux. Within a short time
the two forces met. A battle took place, the sound of gun fire being
heard at the small settlement of St.Paul. Sioux and Chippewas engaged
in bloody hand to hand combat. Before'noon the Chippewas gave way, re=
treating up Bgttle Creek, through Battle Hollow and over the bluff, pur=
gued by the victorius Sioux who followed them to the vicinity of Still~
water, where they gave up the chase. The Chippewas' casulties for this
battle were nine or ten killed end many wounded. It is understood the
Sioux lost heavily, but no figures of their losses are available.

THE THREAT OF Reverend Father Galtier was not wrong in hesitating to build

THE RIVER.
a Catholic church at Grand Marals, or Pig's Eye. Many years previous to
the occupation of the island by the French-Cagadians, the Missiséippi
river overflowed its banks at this point numerous times and innudated
the land. When this happened the island disappeared entirely. In the
early spring and summer of 1850 a great freshet took place. About April
the first the water commenced to rise. Continuing most of the month it
went over the bank at St.Paul, flooding the warehouse floors which were

located on the levee. Soon it threatened to swallow the island of Pig's

Eye, leaving the buildings thereon completely devastated. Fortunately,
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the weather changed and the water receded,

Very little if anything is knowm of what happened to the

original settlers at Graﬁd Marals, or Pig's Bye, during the territorial

period and early statehood days of Minnesota, Their disappearance, like
Pig's Bye Parrant's, is a mystery. No doubtithe fast-growing community
of St.Paul absorbed a few of them, while the remainder returned to their
original homes in Canada.
The deserted cabins on the island, formerly occupied by the

French=Canadians, were alternately used as aques by roaming "nomads of
the rails," when the rats of the river were not using them, and by the
moonshiners. At one time, however, the city fathers of St.Paul must have
thought Pig's Eye Island was a great spot for an amusement park, as Curt-
fice's Revised Atlas of St.Paul, for the year of 1908(at the Minnesota
Hystorical Society), shows a platted-site on the west side of Pig's Eye
Island titled "Riverside Park." No place of amusement ever arose here but,
within the immeadiate vicinity of Riverside, the city did locate its "pést—
house," for the quarantine of individuals with communicable diseases. In
the opinion of the moonshiners it was an ideal spot for them, for the sur—
face od the island was a veritable jungle, completely surrounded by almost
impenetrable swamps on the north, east and south, and by the Myssissippi
river on the west, Segregated as they were and almost isolated from the
nearby civilization, the remained a plague to government.efiforcement officers
until the repeal of the Eighteenth Amdndment.

A MODERN VIEW OF After the removal of the French-=Canadians from Pig's Eye Island,

PIG'S EYE ISLAND, ,
little occured there of any importance until the year of 1934, During this
year, the Board of Trustees of the Minneapolis-Sanitary district had their
chief engineer #nspect Pig's Eye Island as a suitable place for a proposed

sewage disposal plant. In his report he stated that the island impressed

him because of its excellent isolation, topography, "and its adequate area
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for sludge, screenings and grit disposal for burial."

During the fall of the year of 1934, the Board of Trustees
of the Minneapolis~St.Panl Sanitary district decided to purchase the
necessary land. As the engineers had decided that the sludge would
have to be buried, it became necessary to acquire considerable acreage.
The first move executed to utilize the surface of the island for the
site of the plant was the condemnation of four hundred and sixty-seven
acres. This large acreage had been recommended by the engineers to
assure the Sanitary District that no property owner:r would own any peal
estate within a quarter of a mile of the site.

As soon as the property owners of Pig's Eye Island and its
immeadiate vicinity learned of the condemnation proceedings the price
of the land sky-rocketed. A board of appraisers was appointed to award
a fair price for the land, Upon the completion of their report, however,
the Bpoard of Trustees felt the appmaisers awarded higher prices than the
Minneapolis=St.Paul Sanitary district desiréd to pay. On January 28,1935,
it was decided that the chief engineer of the project should prepare a re-
port as to the feasibility and practicability of using a smaller amount of
land for the plant proper, pumping the sludge across the river to the city's
alrport where there wa e - acreage for its disposal, After care—
ful investigation, however, the chief engineer reported this plan was im-
practical and that other methods would have to be sought to solve the prob~
lem,

Previous to the year of 1935 considerable experiments had been
made on new methods for the disposal of sewage. Seeking further data on a
different type of plant the Board of Trustees of the Sanitary District found
that, by the adoption of a newer method of incineration for sludge, it would
be unnecessary to have the original amount of acreage. The purchase of fhe

467 acres

was abandoned, as only 47 acres would be required for the later
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type plant., With this in view, purchase was made of a 47-acre tract
of land on Pig's Eye Island, between the right of way of the St.Paul
Bridge and Terminal railway and the Mississippl river, at a total
cost of $30,718, or $653 per acre. As the original awards for the
467 acres would have incurred an expenditure of $144,145.75, or approx—
imately $311 per acre, a saving of $113,427.75 was effected.

Begun in 1935 and répidly nearing completion at present
(1938), the Twin Cities sewage disposal plant was a local engineering
project of considerable magnitude. The polluted condition of the river
had been observed for a number of years. After the construction of
government dams at Hastings and Minneapolis, the sludge condition of
the river, during both the summer and winter months, became more sev=
ere. Long before this, in the year of 1923, the Minnesota Department
of Helath took official action to solve the problems By the year of
1926, after action by the legislature, the United States Public Health
Service decided to investigate the situation. Completing their study
of the problem and‘by the subseguent formation of the Metropolitan
Drainage Commission, the organization of the Minneapolis~St.Pgul San=
itary Bistrict took place in 1933. One year after this, or the year
of 1934, the construction of the intercepting sewers was begun. In
the same year of 1934, land was sought for the disposal plant and, by
1935, the necessary 47-acre site was purchased on Pig's Eye Island,

Covering fifteen acres of the allotted 47-acre tract the
Pig's Eye Island sewage disposal plant will be one of the most modern
plants:of its kind in the country. Having a capacity of six hundred
and ten million gallons (610,000,000 gals.) of sewage per day, with
approximately fifty-four(54) miles of intercepting sewers leading to

the plant, it was designed for the efficient disposal of the sewage

of a tributary population of 9105000 by the year of 1945,
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The scientific method of disposing of sewage at the Pig's

Eye Island sewage disposal plant)is interesting. Many volumes would

VLY

be necessary to preperdy describe the processéK\Eriefly stated, however,
the treatment process consists of a serles of screens and grit chambers,
mixing and floculating tanks, settling tanks and sewage filters. In dis-
psoing of the slufige, methods of storage and concentration, vacum filt-

eration and incineration will be employed. Sufficient-land on Pig's Eye

Island has been obtained to dispose of the resultant ash frem thie process

for many yearse.

Besides the foregoing methods adopted at the Pig's Eye Island
plant, chlorination for disinfection will be practiced during the summer
months.

Over three hundred and fifty electric motors will operate the
machinery of the sewage plant. Motors ranging from 1/3 horsepower to 75
horsepower will be installed and, upon completion, th total constiuction
cost of the plant will be approximately $3,750,000,

In order to protect the sewage disposal plant from the period-
ical spring floods, the engineers had constructed a rip-rapped dike to a
height three feet above the floor of the plant proper, constructing this
wall of defence on the south and west side of the island.

At the present moment great changes are taking place on Pig's
Eye Igland. Buildings of simple, modern construction have arisen. Pumps
and sewage disposal equipment is being installed. In the administrative
office, six large laboratories are being equipped with the most modern of
research equipment, A giggntic air-conditioning and ventilating system
will soon be in operation. In addition to the administrativeé office and
laboratories, facilities have been included for a garage, diping room, a
locker and shower room, and an equipment room.

All of the surface of the island is being transformed by the
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art of the modern landscape engineers into a spot of picturesque besuty.

A paved highway, leading down the river from the St.Paul levee, allows

an interesting view of the river and the adjoining bluffs. When the whole
project is completed very little if dnything will be left on the surface
of Pigls Bye Igland to remind the visitor that it wes formerly a fore=
boding, mosquito~-infested swamp land=—-——--—honoring the name of Pig's

Eye Parrant.
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